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Washington D.C. 20549
U.S.A.

C O supRL
Dear Sirs, ) e | Ut
Re: CITIC Pacific Limited (“the Company”)

For the purpose of continuing to claim exemption pursuant to Rule 12g 3-2(b) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we hereby furnish to the Commission the
information required by Rule 12g 3-2(b).

Set out in the annexure is a list of information, copies of which are enclosed herewith,
that the Company since August 19, 2005 (i) made or was required to make public
pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or was required to file with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) on which the securities of the
Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE; and (iii) distributed or
was required to distribute to the holders of the securities of the Company.

Also set forth therein in connection with each item is (i) the date on which the .
particular item was or is required to be made public, filed with the HKSE, or
distributed and (ii) the entity requiring that item be made public, filed with the HKSE
or distributed.

Please feel free to contact the undersigned should you have any question concerning
the above.

Thank you for your attention.

Yours faithfully, CoAAmAlED
For and on behalf of PRUGLwwE
CITIC PACIFIC LIMITED SEP 7 1 z@@%
. | HOt SO
l\}f*’* jaClot o @
Alice' Tso ' O\ %\ ,
Company Secretary : w
Encl.

AT/wy/LTR-2497

CITIC PacificLtd 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: 2820 2111 Fax: 2877 2771  Email: com:act@citi.cpaciﬁc.com Web Site: www.citicpacific.com




Exemption No. 82-5232

Annexure

CITIC Pacific Limited

List of Information that the Company since August 19, 2005 (i) made or was required

to_make public pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or was required to file

with the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”) on which the securities of
the Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE: and (iii
distributed or was required to distribute to the holders of the securities of the

Company

1. Document : Announcement of Interim Results for the Six Months Ended 30 June
2005
Date : August 25, 2005
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the HKSE (“HKSE Listing Rules™))

2. Document : Press Announcement regarding the acquisition of interest in Daye
Special Steel Co., Ltd.
Date : August 29, 2005
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

3. Document : Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
Date : September 7, 2005
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

4. Document : Interim Report 2005
Date : September 12, 2005 (distribution date)
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)
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The Stock Exchange of i{ong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no

representation as 1o its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

CITIC PACIFIC e L
CITIC Pacific Limited A
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thncorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabiliey)

(Stock Code: 267) _ ‘ .- B
A
ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN DAYE

The directors (the “Directors™) of CITIC Pacific Limited (the “Company”) announce that on 29 August 2005,
Hubei Xin Yegang Co.. Lid. ("Xin Yegang™), a 95%-owned subsidiary of the Company, submitted a general offer
summary report 1o Shenzhen Stock Exchange for its proposed acquisition of the remaining 41.87% interest in
Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd. ("Daye™) by way of general offer (the “General Offer™). The total acquisition price

for such 41.87% interest in Dave is expected to be around RMB479 million (approximately HK$460 miilion) if all
remaining shareholders of Daye accept the General Offer.

-c*ﬂ.

U

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 13 January 2005 (the “Circular”), the completion of the-acquisition
by Xin Yegang and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company of an aggregate 38.86% interest in Daye (the
“Acquisition™) would require the Company and/or its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group™) to make the General Offer.
The Circular stated that the Company will seek a waiver from China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) of
the requirement for the General Offer. To date. CSRC has not granted such waiver. The Directors consider that to
expedite the Acquisition, it would be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders to make the General Offer
based on the offer prices mentioned below and to complete the Acquisition. The General Offer does not constitute any

notifiable transaction for the Company within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 29 August 2005. Xin Yegang. a 95%-owned subsidiary of the Company, submitted a general offer summary report 1o
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for a proposed General Offer in respect of the remaining 41.87% interest in Dave
(represented by 167.040.000 freeiy transferable shares and 21,130,000 non-freely transferable shares). The offer price
per freely transferable share of Daye will be RMB2.62, which is based on 90% of the 30-day weighted average closing
price of such shares quoted by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the 30 trading days immediately preceding 29 August
2005. The offer price per non-freely transferable share of Daye will be RMB1.953, which is determined with reference
to the audited net asset value per share of Daye as at 31 December 2004. Accordingly, if all the remaining shareholders
of Daye accept the General Offer. the total acquisition price for such 41.87% interest in Daye is expected to be around
RMB479 million (approximately HKS$460 million). which is expected to be financed from the Group’s internal resources.
The making of the General Offer is subject to the approval of CSRC. After obtaining such approval, Xin Yegang will
publish the general offer report in the PRC and the General Offer will become unconditional. The offer period for the
General Offer will be 30 days commencing after the date of publication of the general offer report.

Daye is a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC whose shares are lisied on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Daye is primarily engaged in special steel manufacturing. For the year ended 31 December 2004. the audited
net profit of Daye was approximately RMB27 million (approximately HK$26 million). As at 31 December 2004, the
audited net assets of Daye were upproximately RMB8&77 million (approximately HK$842 million). The closing price of
Daye as at 25 August 2005 quoted by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange was RMB3.25. The said offer prices of RMB2.62

per freely transferable share and of RMB1.953 per non-freely transferable share represent a 19.4% and 39.9% discount
respectively to such closing price.

As at the date hereof, neither the Acquisition nor the General Offer have been completed, and the Group has a 19.27%
interest in Daye. After complcnon of the Acquisition but before the complenon of the General Offer, the Group will
have a 58.13% interest in Daye. The acquisition of additional interests in Daye through the General Offer should
provide an opportunity for the Group to further consolidate its steel manufacturing business in the PRC, and for Daye

10 develop its business in the international market. The Company’s present intention is to maintain the listing status of
Daye after completion of the General Offer.

(For reference only, the exchange rate of RMB 10 HK$ used in this announcement is RMBI = HK$0.96)

By Order of the Board
CITIC Pacific Limited
Alice Tso Mun Wai
‘Company Secretary

As at the date of this annouucement the executive directors of the Company are Me:sr: Larry Yung Chi Kin (Chalrmarl)
Henry Fan Hung Ling, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman Yuen-Kee Tong, Vernon Francis Moore, Yao Jinrong, Li Shilin,

‘executive directors of the Company are Messrs Haaulvau Ho Hau Hay,

Alcxaudcr Reui Hanulwa. Hansen Loh Chung
..Hou aud Normau—Ho Hau Chong. . )

CarlYung Ming Jie, Liu Jifu and Leslie Chang Li Hsien; the non-executive direciors of the Company are Messrs Willie— =
‘hang, André Desmarais and Peter Kruyt (alternate direcior to Mr. André-Desmarais); and the independent non- - :
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Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities

For the month ended _31st August, 2005

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
CC: The Research & Planning Departnmient of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From: __ CITIC Pacific l[dmited

(MName of Company)

Alice Tso Mun Wai

TelNo.  2820-2111

(Name of Responsible Oflicial)

Date - 7th September, 2005

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Sceuritics :
(please tick wherever applicablc)

1. Ordinary shares:

Q/. Other classes of sharces : please specify

2. Preference shares

shares

4. Warrants : plcase specify :

(B) Movement in Autharised Share Capital:

No. of msdkmarx shares/
PO CCABK B EX

eiherelnssasof shares

Balance at close

of preceding month 3,000,000,000

Increase/(Decrease)
(EGM approval date):
)

Balance at close

3,000,000,000
of the month

L

Par Value

(HK$)

Authorised Share Capital
(HK$)

0.40 1,200,000,000

1,200,000, 000

{C) Movement in Issucd Share Capital:

No. of
QrHnarx shares

Balance at close

of preceding month: 2,192,680,160
Increase/(Decrease)

during the month T

Balance at close 2,192,680,160

of the month :

No. of other
classes of shares

No. of Preference
shares
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(D) Dctalls of Movement :
* please delete aad insert *N/A® wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES IN MOVEMENT DURING SECURITIES IN {INNO. OF NE,W‘1
SECURITIES ISSUE AT CLOSE THE MONTH ISSUE AT SHARES ARISING
OF PRECEDING CLOSE OF THE |{THEREFROM
MONTH MONTH
SHARE OPFTIONS’ No. of Options Granted {Excrcised| Cancelled | No. of Options
Type
CITIC Pacific .
1. E 35626889“’51‘ € 9,040,000 - - - 9,040,000 Nil
Exercise price:
urs 18.20 .
CITIC Pacific
ISIiare anentine 11,070,000 - —— — 11,070,000 Nil
Execraise pace:
His 19.90
WARRANTS® Nomuinal Value | Excrcised Nominal Value ~3
Datc of Expiry p/a (HKS) (HK?$) (HKS)
1.
Subscriptioa price:
HKS
2.
Subscription price:
HKS
CONVERTIBLES® Converted
Class  N/a Units (Units) Units
Convertible price:
HKS
OTHER ISSUES OF
SHARES* N/A
Rights Issuc Price : Issuc and allotment Date :
Placing . Price - Issuc and allotmient Date:
Bonus Issue 1ssuc and atfotment Date:
Scap Dividend Issuc and allotinent Date :
Repurchase of share Canccliation Dalc :
Redemption of share Redenption Date :
Consideration issue Price: Issuc and allotment Date :
Others Price: Issue and allotment Date :
(please specdy)
Total No. of ordinary sharcs/preference shares/other classes of shares Nil
increased/(decreased) during the month: ===
Authonised Signatory:
Remarks :
-
. o
Name:Alice Tso Mun Wai
Title : Company Secretary
Note;

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided (o other infoauation vendors or users of market
data at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prioc notification (o (the companyfissuer,

.
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As restated

2005 2004
BEANRZTALABA

in HK$ million Six months ended 30 June

RRE{ENR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 2,773 1,728
CEEEBHARZBNEM Major Businesses’ Contribution

N Aviation 499 537
-1 BB Civil Infrastructure 180 161
SOBRE Power Generation 145 208
: ER% Communications 92 111
N} Property 821 244
: FREREE Special Steel Manufacturing 420 207
L OBERSH Marketing & Distribution 128 146
REYRELNFEEEE Fair Value Change of Investment Properties 700 -
f;‘ %% 2REEM Cash Contributed from all Businesses 2,856 1,387
; AAE+H +-A=+-8B
— tE st
As at As at
! 30 June 31 December
- #LEA Capital Employed 55,331 51,578
BRRES Shareholders’ Funds 38,202 36,998
- BAf Net Debt 14,507 12,163
7 MEkEBAZER Available Loan Facilities 12,378 8,899

‘ BEAASTAILAEA

j BT E in HK$ Six months ended 30 June
EREF Earnings per Share 1.26 0.79
SRERE Dividend per Share 0.30 0.30
G BIRE Staff 15,728 12,611

: Please see page 59 for definitions of terms used
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders
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I am pleased to announce that CITIC Pacific’s net profit for the first
six months of 2005 increased 60% to HK$2,773 million compared
with the same period last year. Strong growth from our Special Steel
and Property businesses were the driving forces in the gain. The

board recommends maintaining the interim dividend of HK$0.30.

During the period under review, our business is increasingly
focused on mainland China where we continue to witness strong
economic growth. The implementation of the investment plan we
announced 18 months ago and additional new investments made in
steel and property in mainland China in the first half of this year all
demonstrate our commitment to achieving better returns in a fast

growing market for our shareholders.

Our experience and expertise gained from over ten years of
operating in Special Steel Manufacturing and our ability to take
full advantage of expansion opportunities has made CITIC Pacific a
major player in this field in mainland China. Despite upsurge in the
price of iron ore, for the first half of 2005, profit contribution from
this sector increased by an impressive 103% compared with the
same period last year, due to continued strong performance from
Jiangyin Xingcheng steel plant and the newly acquired Xin Yegang
steel plant. The development of new products and the increase in
exports have also shown solid results. Since the acquisition of Xin
Yegang, steps have been taken to improve its efficiency and better
its management and these efforts are already showing results.
Progress has also been made in ensuring that both Jiangyin and Xin
Yegang work together to create synergies in raw material
purchasing, product realignment and pricing, and customer

coverage.
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CITIC Pacific is in the process of acquiring another special steel
manufacturer in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, Shijiazhuang Iron &
Steel Co., Ltd. Given this acquisition, Jiangyin Xingcheng, Xin
Yegang and Shijiazh.uang special steel will have access to markets in
East, Central and North of China. The transaction is subject to
documentation and approval by the relevant government

authorities.

As we expand in this sector, we are also fully aware of potential
competition from both domestic and foreign manufacturers.
Therefore, in addition to economies of scale, raising the quality of
our products and level of technology is becoming increasingly
important for us to remain competitive. On this front, we are
cooperating with Sumitomo Metals Kokura of Japan in building a
new phase in Jiangyin steel plant to produce high-grade special
steel aiming for the import substitution market. We are confident
that the growth of the Chinese economy will continue to create
strong demand for special steel products and CITIC Pacific is well

positioned to take full advantage of this opportunity.

On Properties, we are of the view that long-term growth will come
from mainland China and this is where we are making new
investments. As China is a big and regionalized market, we are
currently focusing on Shanghai and some select secondary cities in
nearby provinces of Zhejiang and Jiangsu. In Shanghai, concept
planning design work will commence shortly for a residential and
commercial development in Qingpu District. In April, CITIC Pacific
acquired a site in the city of Yangzhou in Jiangsu Province, which
will be used for residential and commercial development with a
gross floor area of about 4.7 million sq. ft. In Ningbo, Zhejiang

Province, we are in the course of acquiring a site for commercial
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development with a gross floor area of approximately 1.0 million

sq. ft.

Construction of the first phase of New Westgate Garden residential
development in Shanghai is on schedule with completion expected

in the first half of 2006.

The Hong Kong property market has seen a revival as evidenced by
the higher rental and sales prices of both commercial and
residential properties. CITIC Pacific is now developing a residential
and commercial project in Tung Chau Street in Kowloon after
settling the land premium. Work on Discovery Bay Phase 13
continues with completion targeted for the end of this year. Two
pieces of land in Hong Kong were sold in the first half of this year

for a significant profit.

In Aviation, both Carhay Pacific and Dragonair recorded healthy
increases in passenger and cargo volumes amid capacity expansion.
However, high oil price remains a concern and continues to affect

the profitability of the two airlines.

The future of the Hong Kong aviation industry rests on all parties
involved working closer together. On this front, we are happy to
see that both airlines are co-operating on many operational fronts.
Cathay Pacific is also working with Air China on various
operational aspects after taking a 10% stake in the airline. As

a significant shareholder of both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair,
CITIC Pacific has been and will continue to be working hard to
build a strong alliance to make the Hong Kong aviation industry

better and more competitive.
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Our Power Generation business experienced a difficult first half.
Higher coal prices and the inability of generators to pass on in full
this cost increase to end-users affected the profitability of all power
generators in China. Beginning in May, our plants are able to pass
some of the rise in the price of coal onto the power purchasers
following a government approved fuel-cost pass through
mechanism. This will certainly bring relief to power companies and

we expect performance in the second half of 2005 to be better.

Construction of Ligang phase III (2x600MW) and phase IV
(2x600MW), Zhengzhou power station (2x200MW) and the North
United expansion are on schedule. As they begin operations in 2006
and 2007, we expect better profits to come from the power

business.

The Marketing and Distribution business had a mixed first half in
which business in Hong Kong performed well while mainland
China remains a challenging market in particular in the sales of
motor vehicles. Our joint venture with Wal-Mart in which we have a
35% interest, opened its first Shanghai store in Pudong at the end of
July. Over 100,000 shoppers visited the store on its oiaening day.
This is the second store of the jv company, the first is in the city of
Nanjing. According to the development plan, the jv is targeting to
open more stores in 2006 in major cities in Jiangsu, Zhejiang

provinces and Shanghai.

Looking ahead, with the revival of the Hong Kong economy and the
continued growth of the economy in mainland China, we are
optimistic of the second half of 2005 and beyond. We expect most
of our businesses in which we are investing to perform better. We

will also continue to seek new investment opportunities. At the




AEZRHOBERE > FIFEFREN  same time, our sound financial management enables us to not only
MBEEEAELRFENERRMETILM  have ample resources to support our expansion but also maintain a
B PABRREMBERBETLEN  stable dividend payout.

et -
On behalf of all the directors, I would like to thank everyone at

R AAENERFAEES  WHEEE CITIC Pacific for helping the Group achieve a good first half.
2EEIHGHEEREG L EFERERE

TRE LR
R Larry Yung Chi Kin
E:3 Chairman

k> _FERFAAZTHA Hong Kong, 25 August 2005
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Financial Review
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Introduction

CITIC Pacific’s 2005 Interim Report includes a letter from the Chairman
to shareholders, the interim accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding

the statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

- segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Pages 32 to 36 of the Interim Report contain the Consolidated Profit and
Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements, on pages 37 to 48
of the Interim Report, are Notes that further explain certain figures

presented in the statements.

On page 49 is the report of CITIC Pacific’s auditor - PricewaterhouseCoopers -

of their independent review of CITIC Pacific’s Interim Report.

Basis of Accounting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA’) and have been converged with

International Financial Reporting Standards.

In the second half of 2004, the Group adopted early HKFRS 3 - Business
Combinations; HKAS 36 ~ Impairment of Assets and HKAS 38 - Intangiblé
Assets. These accounting changes were effective starting from 1 January
2004, the restated profit attributable to shareholders for the six months
ended 30 June 2004 before other prior year adjustments arising from
accounting changes in 2005 was increased by HK$388 million, as

compared with previously reported amount in the 2004 interim accounts.

In current period, the Group has applied for the first time other than those
early adopted in 2004, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (‘HKERss’), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKAss’) and

Interpretations (hereafter collectively referred to as the ‘New HKFRSs’)
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issued by HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2005 set out as below:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
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The application of the New HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the
Group’s accounting policies. As a result of these changes, the restated
profit attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 30 June
2004 decreased by HK$23 million and the shareholders’ funds as at

1 January 2005 decreased by HK$943 million. Details of the major
changes to the accounting policies and their financial impact on the
Group are summarized in Note 1 to the interim accounts. Within this
section, only the 2004 figures have been adjusted in accordance with the

changes in accounting policies for comparison purpose.

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The net profit attributable to shareholders for the six months ended

30 June 2005 was HK$2,773 million, an increase of 60% compared with
HX$1,728 million for the same period in 2004 (as restated). The reasons

for the increase in profit are described below.
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Business Segments Contribution

The contribution made by major business segments in the first six months

of 2005, compared with the same period of 2004, were:

HAE R Contribution (Restated)

BEEET HK$ mitlion 1-6/2005 1-6/2004 2005 - 2004

fnz Aviation 499 537 (38)
ERRE Civil Infrastructure 180 161 19

%®E Power Generation 145 208 63)
EEE Communications 92 111 (19)
/S Property 821 244 577

HEMSR Special Steel Manufacturing 420 207 213

HERDH Marketing & Distribution 128 146 (18)
REYELFEEE Fair Value change of Investment Properties 700 - 700

AP E_TENEANA=ZTHIEAMA 6
FIE RS

o BiZE  BEREREYERZEHILELEER
HisEm > BIEAMEADZBRAEERZ
KBLEZETTE -

o R ARERREBEEREMEZGMNE
BB AT -

o BME  HMHELELE  ZFXHFL
AE T B A NEE - BATHEE
FAEREBBEELRE -

o FEXE  BBMEREEIHPEFEENI6IS
HETR, AMEAZEAMERE X
E MAREFRZHRIBRFHERE -

o M NIBBREYEZEMELE  HAE
B N236%  FERN_FEHAEREYE
(BELEFFEKBL B gz
BRRE - HEe i NEISE TR -

o HIEMME  “ETREBNNERSEN
BT EEBEREFHEY  WEHEE
FRMZBAERTE -

Compared with the contribution for the six months ended 30 June 2004:

o]

o

Aviation: While the passenger and cargo load factor were up compared
to the same period last year, the significant increase in fuel costs had

negative impact on the airlines profitability.

Civil Infrastructure: Contribution from both the Eastern and Western

Harbour Tunnel increased.

Power Generation: Contribution decreased in the first half of 2005 due
to the continuing high coal prices. The increase in average tarriff during

this period only partially offset the increase in coal costs.

Communications: Results of CITIC Telecom 1616 decreased due to lower
margins; contribution from cTM was improved while the performance

of Guoan remained relatively stable.

Property: Excluding revaluation surplus of investment properties,
contribution increased by 236% mainly due to the profits from the sale
of properties in 2005, including the sale of a piece of land at Hung Shui

Kui in the New Territories. Rental income remained strong and stable.

Special Steel Manufacturing: Contribution doubled in 2005 due to
continuing strong performance from Jiangyin Steel Plant and the

contribution from the newly acquired Xin Yegang Steel Plant.
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o HERMNE BESHEEEUEH o Marketing & Distribution: Despite the improved results in Hong Kong,
g P P g g

BB B B IR EL T G MR overall contribution decreased mainly due to the challenging motor
HHERERTE - market in the Mainland.

o BEMRNTHRERD  EFBREZUE o Fair Value change of Investment Properties: Increase in fair value of
SIEEREYEATEELF - investment properties as a result of improving business environment.
pEEl =y

Contribution
B B BT HKS million 1,000~

BE-ZTRG P=+A1t~EAR
Six months ended 30 June 2005 500—!_]
|

| i
O_Mn e s O O (I
azE BRI E ERE i o2 e HERAH REME
Aviation Civl Power Communications  Property Special Steel Marketing & LTRERY
Infrastructure Generation Manufacturing  Distribution Fair Value Change
of lnvestment

Praperties

CJ2004 32008

AREHBERBEREAMARALESE S Pages 43 and 44 of the Interim Report contains business segment
ZEEE  URKEHALKZAMNBME  information for turnover and profit before net finance charges and
X BERBAEAER - FTEEFEHME  taxation for consolidated activities, share of results of jointly controlled

REBE AR EE - entities and associated companies.
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R i) Geographical Distribution
REEFE FEHURBIZENEMEE  The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
B RBGHER I EMFEVENS - China and overseas is shown below based on the location of the base of

each business’s operations.

&2 #
Geographical Distribution

2005 As at 30 June 2005
ZRRAHE

AAZTE&H

2004

As at 31 December 2004
ZRENF

TZRA=+—B&E

BEXA=1+HLA<EA
Six months ended 30 June

AR % ' . BEEEE%
Contribution % Assets at Book Value %
T FESAFTERE Hong Kong SAR . & Mainland China 1845 Overseas
FEXH Interest Expense

FEECHEEALSBEIHMEZHAER  The Group’s interest expense net of amount capitalised increased from
—EATZEECEMEE® _HINTE  HKS$163 million to HK$240 million mainly due to the increase in the
7 TERBEESFEMEMEFIEER  amount of borrowings and the increase in the weighted average cost of
A H3.4%8MNE3.9% ° ‘ debt from 3.4% to 3.9%.

I’ Taxation

BRER _ERNFEE—BETATETHY Taxation increased from HK$158 million in 2004 to HK$248 million in
ME_FZREEW _EEOTABEET - £ 2005 mainly due to increased profit.

R TR -
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Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for which
it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its
businesses to provide returns on investment over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.

Earnings per Share

For the first half of 2005, earnings per share was HK$1.26, an increase

of 60% compared with HK$0.79 in 2004. All the increases in earnings per
share was attributable to the increase in profit as the number of shares

outstanding in the two periods was substantially the same.

SREF SEREES
Earnings per Share Shareholders’ Funds per Share
T HKS BT HKS
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BREBERES Shareholders’ Funds per Share

“EERAFERAZTHZERBRREESRE
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Shareholders’ funds per share at 30 June 2005 was HK$17.4. The adoption
of New HKERSs decreased 2005’s opening shareholders’ funds by
approximately HK$943 million. This offset the first half 2005 profit less
dividends paid in the period.




BREZS Dividend per Share

TEZAFZERERTHRKEAEREY  Aninteirm dividend of HK$0.30 per share is proposed for 2005, the same
0.307C » MFFEZHE - ZFF=FLZF  asin 2002, 2003 and 2004.

FIUEHERF -

BRRE
Dividend per Share

FEBIT HKS

o)
<
o

C 145718 & Special Dividend

FERAR B, Final Dividend

1R EARS & Interim Dividend
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BEE Turnover

HERNHEZBEBE TR I4%  FFEKEHE  Marketing & Distribution turnover decreased by 14% due to reduced
B BRRREXRD  FEEEEZER  sales in mainland China particularly for the motor business, Special Steel
HIEN_FZEETEERBZHEHEME  Manufacturing turnover increased by 96% mainly due to turnover of Xin
Mm96% » M B EXFAEFERFEH  Yegang which was acquired in the second half of 2004. Communications
ZERRBHRE  BP17% - turnover decreased by 17% mainly due to the decrease in traffic volume as

a result of competition.

BEEE
Turnover

SEEFIR 18T HKS billion

30 -

25-

20- N

& £ 7 Sale of Businesses
[T B 8 Marketing & Distribution
H O S EMRE S R &4 Special Steel Manufacturing & Others
H " %% Property .
| |
L

112 2% Communications

A8 H 245 Six month results

& Power Generation
6/04 6/05

[ EERFE Civil Infrastructure
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BrEHx Capital Expenditure

BEZFTRHEANAZFTALEARMEA A% During the six months ended 30 June 2005, the Company increased its land
AEMAEREZ L WEFUMBEYXEME  bank in the Mainland for properties development. The development of the
RK¥E - 2 WMHAE—MABEIRBEF MM first phase of New Westgate Garden is expected to be completed in 2006.
FERNERT -

The acquisition of 95% interest in Xin Yegang and related assets were
HiaEosnEE RAEREEZWEE R =F  completed in the second half of 2004 and further additions and upgrading
FEETHERR - EEREHE—FSHRE  of production facilities is continuing.
Ry EEEES -

The construction of new power generators by Ligang Power and Zhenzhou
METHEABMNERZHBEERIBMME  Power are on schedule while the installment for capital contribution of
T T HEBEHEEATHLE - North United Power was made.

HUEBEFRHPRMERRZ LHRMEZ The investrnent of the listed shares in China Shenhua Energy is included
&’E- in Others.

BE_FFAFEAAZTH > AEHESHES  Asat 30 June 2005, the Group’s contracted capital commitments were
BAREAET _+ /B ZERBTE HK$2.8 billion, which is mainly related to the Property, Special Steel

By FHEAGERBEXRHAH - Manufacturing and Power Generation business.

BEEMX Capital Expenditure

JEEEET HKS miflion 1-6/2005 1-6/2004 1-12/2004
M Property 807 511 1,291
BERMEE Special Steel Manufacturing 795 1,038 3,417
BE Power Generation 615 1,184 2,739
Hit Others 514 269 304
HERSHE Marketing & Distribution 89 86 203
ERE Communications 42 134 177
EHRE Civil Infrastructure 8 50 61
iz Aviation - 518 518

15
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Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised at
head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

We aim to diversify our funding sources through utilisation of both banking
and capital markets. To the extent it is possible, financing is arranged to
match business characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse

project finance is employed when it is available and appropriate.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore it is subject to the market risk of the foreign exchange
rates of the HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency
exposure, non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same
currency as the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using
foreign exchange contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible
due to limitation in financial markets and regulatory constraints,
particularly on investment into mainland China as currently the Renminbi
is not a free convertible currency and the on-shore forward market is still
in the early stage of development. In addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which
usually accounts for no less than 25% of the total project investment
amount, is required to be paid in US or HK Dollars. As a result, CITIC
Pacific has an increasing exposure to the Renminbi. As of 30 June 2005,
around 32% (around RMB 18 billion) of the Group’s total assets were

based in mainland China.

The Group aims to maintain a suitable mixture of fixed and floating rate
borrowings in order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements.
Interest rate hedging ratio is determined after taking into consideration
the general market trend, the Group’s cash flow pattern and interest
coverage ratio. The Group actively employs various interest rate

instruments to manage long term interest risk.
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The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited.
Counterparties’ credit risks are carefully reviewed and in general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions with credit rating at least
investment grade. The counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is

also an important consideration as a means to control credit risk.

Cash Flow

By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised at the holding company level.
As such, the net amount of cash flow from each business to the Company is
an important indicator as to the Company’s ability to service its debts.

During the period, the Group’s cash flow remained stable and strong.

REXRBZHAERBEUE Following is a summary of the cash contributions by each business segment:
HEEAAZ=THLEAER
For the six months ended 30 June
HEETET HKS million 2005 2004
HEXER Infrastructure
ES Power Generation 298 148
Az Aviation 534 428
EREn Civil Infrastructure 169 180
ERE Communications 140 49
BEEEE Special Steel Manufacturing 143 -
/S Property 1,475 525
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 93 39
Hit Others 4, 18
&t Total 2,856 1,387

MR EE LBEREMHEAMEHR
MRt REYEROKZREEEBRKXE
BN o

Cash contribution from the property sector increased significantly as a
result of the successful selling of New Westgate Garden in Shanghai and

the sales of two pieces of land in New Territories.

17
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Manufacturing & Others

C O EARER Infrastructure

pEE HEXEBZERASRE

From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses

CIREEBAZBRESRE
From Regular Cash Flow per Share

HEXA=ZTALEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June

FERERENE Summary of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BEEET HKS miflion 2005 2004
ReBEXRGg/ (REM) Net Cash generated from / (invested in)
REEB consglidated activities 851 67)
HEEFIERE jointly controlled entities 200 {39)
bl l/NG]| associated companies 1,017 896
HuBEE other financial assets 102 214
HEEBER Sale of business interests 487 2
BB RRHERZR/E Capital expenditure and investment in new businesses (2,668) - (3,614)
g Tax (87) 97)
BXAFEEE Net interest paid (263) (178)
(361) (2,883)
Bk e Dividends paid {1,754) (1,533)
BEH N Increase in borrowings 2,310 2,024
BITERERE Share options exercised 12 30
568 521
HeRERRBESZEM/ (B ) Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 207 (2,362)
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Group Debt and Liquidity

As of 30 June 2005, the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$17.1 billion
(31 December 2004: HK$1‘4.6 billion), cash and deposits with banks were
HK$2.6 billion (31 December 2004: HK$2.4 billion) giving a net debt of
HK$14.5 billion compared to HK$12.2 billion at 31 December 2004. The
increase in net debt was mainly due to new investments as described under
Capital Expenditure Section. Leverage, measured by the Group’s net debt to

total capital, was 28% (31 December 2004: 25%).

Total Debt

Total debt increased due to capital expenditure and new investments of
HK$2,668 million. The debt at 30 June 2005 that will mature to the end
of 2005 amounted to 4% of the total debt and at that date the Group had
deposits with banks of HK$2.6 billion, exceeding the loans due for
repayment in second half of 2005.

aeE
Total Debt

B HE R 1B IT HKS billion

20 -

75 A 245 Six month results

O R4 After the fifth year

CO==145R (BEERMF)
I the third to fitth year inclusive

MEMA In the second year

6/04 6/05

T — %™ In the first year
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RIEZTEAAZTH FEEZHESE The denomination of the Group’s borrowings as well as cash and deposit
RERFRERZHWREDT balances in various currencies as of 30 June 2005 is summarised as follows:
we Denomination

bt EV AR 2] Eith £
BEEETEE HK$ million Equivalent HK$ US$ | Renminbi Yen Other Total
& Borrowings 10,085 4,489 1,909 536 130 | 17,129
HeEREXK Cash and Deposits 133 927 1,353 147 62 2,622
FEE Net Borrowings 9,932 3,662 556 389 68 | 14,507
wRABERE Available Sources of Financing

WoEZRENAZTH BRREARTRE In addition to cash and deposits balance of HK$2.6 billion as of 30 June
Bt AETs AEENKRERZHEARG 2005, the Group’s undrawn available facilities consisted of HK$10.6 billion
BEEBEREZEPEXBH—TEAE  incommitted long term loans and HK$1.8 billion of money market lines.
T BRWEFEBER T AR EH5E Available trade facilities amounted to HK$2.1 billion.

HEAEY_+Ex -

EEEE BRAEES EREEE
EEFET HK$ million Total Facilities Outstandings Available Facilties
BREEN Committed Facilities
HITER Bank Loans 22,712 12,136 10,676
2HES Global Bonds 3,510 3,510 -
FARE Private Placement 780 780 -
BERGEHE Total Committed 27,002 16,426 10,576
FEEREER Uncommitted Facilities
BEMBEEE Money Market Lines 2,494 692 1,802
EREEE Trade Facilities 2,458 378 2,080
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Maturity Profile of Outstanding Debt

The Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile to ensure
that the Group’s maturing debt each year will not exceed the anticipated
cash flow and the Group’s ability to refinance the debt in that year. During
the period, CITIC Pacific successfully completed a HK$5.2 billion 7-year
syndicated loan transaction. In addition, a number of bilateral facilities

were established or renewed, further improved the Group’s maturity profile.

2010

EEEET RIATR &5t Ekx

2010 and
HK$ million 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Beyond Total Percentage
[SYNCTN
Parent Company' 15 832 2,687 3,072 2,067 5,644 14,317 84%
YN
Subsidiaries 681 1,129 446 251 277 28 2,812 16%
B es
Total Maturing Debt 696 1,961 3,133 3,323 2,344 5672 17,129 100%
anx
Percentage 4% 12% 18% 19% 14% 33% 100%
BERHEER
Available Facilities? - 769 134 205 1,678 7,090 10,576

| BE-MEARTENTA T2 ENBA NS
REENEETERTERR T ——FHE
SIS

2 EEEBEEEY -

MERO—E
UTFAAEBR _FFLFAAZTRZAR
BT BRI - AU - BURSE UL R -

1. Including a US$450 million global bond due in 20711 which was issued by a
wholly owned special purposes vehicle.
2. Commitied facilities only.

Financial Position at a Glance
The charts below show the type, interest rate, maturity and currency

profiles of borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2005:

EREAH
Available Facilities by Type

SREE B EETET
Total HK$14.486 billion

73% 13% 14%

HHMR Term Loan =|EE TS Money Market O ES Trade
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KBEAE
OQutstanding Debt by Type

EREBN—FtT—E=TET

Total HK$17.13 billion 20% 5% 4%

T R ER Term Loan 1 &% Bond

- FLAEZE Private Placement ] &¥ % Money Market

REESECAMERE
Outstanding Debt by Currency

59% 26% 11% 4%
= BT HKD COELUSD
AEE RMB [ E A #ETE Other Currency

RIS/ EZKEESRE
Qutstanding Debt by Maturity
412% 51% 33%
[=32005 2006
12007 to 2009 12010 & LATE 2010 & Beyond
FIEFAERE(BB—F)
Interest Rate Base (Over One Year)
FIT HKD | i
34% 66%
£7USD | o
41% 59%
RRER Al Currencies‘f TR
31% 69%

[ EI7E Fixed [ /28 Floating
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets

Financial guarantees and pledged assets were given by the Company or its
subsidiaries for loan facilities which were not included in the consolidated
borrowings in a limited number of cases. As of 30 June 2005, CITIC Pacific
provided guarantees to support its share of loan facilities totaling RMB664
million at Jilin Power Station. In addition, Hubei Xin Yegang Co., Ltd.
("Xin Yegang’), a 95% owned subsidiary acquired by the Company,
provided guarantees to Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd. in connection with
loan facilities totaling RMBI,160 million. CITIC Pacific is in the process of
acquiring 58% equity interest in Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd. and the
transaction is pending for relevant regulatory approval. Xin Yegang also
pledged assets to support loan facilities of Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd. for
amount up to RMB131 million.

Separately, Xin Yegang provided guarantees to support the bank borrowings
up to RMB32 million by Daye Steel Group Corporation. Da);e Steel Group
Corporation was the original holding company of Xin Yegang. These
arrangements were incurred prior to CITIC Pacific’s acquisition of Xin
Yegang and these obligations will be released in due course according to

the acquisition agreement.

As at 30 June 2005, HK$195 million Group assets were pledged to secure
banking facilities, these arrangements mainly related to Xin Yegang
(details are described in above paragraphs) and Dah Chong Hong’s

business overseas.
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EEEHBRBREBELTZ Debt / Cash in Jointly Controlied Entities and
B/ Re Associated Companies

EREFHEE > A EEMHEHFSHEAEKXR  For accounting purposes, some of the Group’s businesses are classified as
EHEBREELR - UTARFEHER  jointly controlled entities and associated companies. The following table
BBELNAN_ETEFAAZ+THEYE  shows the debt / cash position of jointly controlled entities and associated
B EG/ BaE > REFEZEFE  companies by business sector as of 30 June 2005 which under Hong Kong
Bl BB/ He TR GEEEEZEE  generally accepted accounting standards is not consolidated into the

REA - Group’s accounts.
BEEE/ HIEREERSG EhERENENE
(Re) Z2HEaE/(Re) NAERZEE
Amount of debt
Proportion of Net Debt/ guaranteed by
E k| Business Sector Total Net Debt/ (Cash) attributable CITIC Pacific or
EEBET HKS$ milion (Cash) to CITIC Pacific its subsidiaries
EXER Infrastructure
B®E Power Generation 25,472 6,692 624
Lz Aviation 15,437 3,823
2R Civil Infrastructure 2,560 930
ERE Communications 1,224 768
HEEEE Special Steel Manufacturing (30) (23)
- Property (462) {188)
HERSH Marketing & Distribution 363 363
Hit Others (250) (126)
&5 Total 44,314 12,239 624
B S 5 9 4R BT B MR B B B RS Except for the guarantee related to Jilin Power Station as described under

ERFFIZEHHERE A RERZEHE  Financial Guarantees, the debt amount shown in the above table were
B WHRREEMERE - AEMA  arranged by associated companies and jointly controlled entities without
HRE (FlMX R EWREER) HHBRHE  recourse to their shareholders. Certain Group’s investments, such as
SEME > WEMIMEE - Festival Walk and Discovery Bay, are 100% financed by their shareholders

and do not have external borrowings.
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Derivative Products

CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments, including
derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and
currency rates. Following the adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 as
described under ‘Significant accounting policies’, all derivatives are stated
at fair market value. Certain derivative transactions, while the objective is
for hedging purposes under the Group’s risk management policies, may
not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under the specific rules of the
new accounting standards. The changes in the fair value of such kind of
derivative transactions are recognized in the profit and loss account. The
fair market value of outstanding derivative transactions is calculated at
least semi-annually based on the Group’s own calculation where

applicable, or price quotations obtained from major financial institutions.

The Cvompany uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest
rate characteristics of its borrowings. As of 30 June 2005, the Company
had outstanding interest rate swap / option contracts with a notional
amount of HK$10.9 billion. After the swaps, HK$11.9 billion or 69% of
the Group’s total borrowings were effectively paying floating rate and the
remaining were effectively paying fixed rate of interest. The overall
weighted average all-in cost of debt (including fees and hedging costs) for
the six months ended 30 June 2005 was about 3.9%, compared with 3.4%

for the same period last year.

The underlying cash flow of the Group’s businesses is mainly in HK
dollars or in Renminbi. To minimise potential exposure to US dollar
denominated debt principal and interest payments, the Company entered
into forward and option contracts. As of 30 June 2005, such contracts
outstanding amounted to US$577 million. In addition, foreign exchange
forward contracts were also employed by our trading business to hedge
currency fluctuations. As of 30 June 2005, such contracts outstanding

amounted to HK$967 million.
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Bf BB €8 Financial Review

BHREE Contingent Liabilities
RZFZAFERAZTR  AEEZHAE As at 30 June 2005, the Group’s contingent liabilities had not changed
R BR 5 4F R OBl M KA - : significantly from the last year end.
BELE Leverage
MIEFREAAZTA > FRAMIELER  Net debt divided by total capital was 28% at 30 June 2005 compared with
F28% - T _FEFNFEERH25% - 25% at the end of 2004.
Leverage
FBREFE BT HKS billion
60
50 W
40
30 g, 28%
20 20% 19%
10
C1#2E 7 Total Capital
0 00 01 02 03 04 6/05 C I BREEHE LY Net Debt/Total Capital %
0 F B & Net Debt
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Interest Cover

EBITDA divided by interest expense for the six months ended 30 June 2005

was 17.0 compared to 16.8 the same period in 2004, due to the 48%

increase in EBITDA and a 47% increase of interest expenses.

FISfZ 8
Interest Cover

JEREIR BT HKS biflion

00 01 02 03

04

17x

6/05

B TEREMAXE  BE - TERBHEZENT EBITDA

COTeEfexs R EREBHZFAFEMEIH (x= &)
EBITDA/Interest Expense (x = times)

0 #8. X% Interest Expense

a
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Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan covenants
to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt compliance.

The financial covenants are generally limited to minimum net worth
undertaking; a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth and a limit
on the amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s total assets.

CITIC Pacific is in compliance with all of its loan covenants.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned an investment grade foreign currency
long term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody's Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings, the current credit outlook is stable,

reflecting CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile.

For the six months period ended 30 June 2005, the Group’s leverage,
measured by the net debt to total capital, was 28%. Interest cover, defined
as EBITDA divided by interest expense, was 17.0. Cash contributed from all
the business amounted to HK$2,856 million, more than double compared
to the same period of last year. We believe that these financial indicators
demonstrated the Group’s financial strength. The Company’s objective is
to maintain its financial discipline aiming to improve its credit rating

going forward.

Forward Looking Statements

This Interim Report contains certain forward looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of the
Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied

in such statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.
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Human Resources
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As at the end of June 2005, the Group employed 15,728 staff in its
headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiary companies
worldwide. The two main areas of concentration are in Hong Kong
employing 3,941 and in the mainland China employing 11,537. Another

250 are employed in subsidiaries in Japan, Singapore and Canada.

The trend of solid economic recovery in 2004 has continued in the

first half of 2005. It has led to significant positive improvements in the
employment environment motivating staff to operate effectively and
efficiently to attain higher level of performance. To ensure that the overall
compensation is internally equitable, in line with local norms, and in
support of the business strategy, the Group proactively conducts review
on the cash compensation and benefits programs provided for its
employees. No major amendment has been made to the human resources
management policy or procedure in the last six months as the Group
remains largely compatible with major employers in the territories it
operates in. In line with established policy, some interim salary adjustment

on a selective basis was made to match performance with market changes.

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organisational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees

are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and self-development with financial
sponsorship by the Group whilst in-house training for different level of
employees is organised regularly on product knowledge and skill training.
Moreover, with the growing cross-border business activities between
Hong Kong and the mainland China, the Group continues to strengthen
business integration, knowledge sharing and skill transfer between staff

in the two territories.

CITIC Pacific also fully supports investing in the training and development
of our future generation. The Group has put in place various management
trainee and apprentice training programs. It also participates in the
Government’s Youth Pre-employment Training Program for young school
leavers and supports both local and overseas universities’ initiatives by
providing internship opportunities in both Hong Kong and in the

mainland China operations.
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Corporate Governance
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CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance
and a full description of the operation of the Board, System of Internal
Control, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Codes and financial

reporting may be found on page 57 of the 2004 Annual Report.

The Board currently comprises ten executive and six non-executive
directors of whom four are ‘independent’ under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the ‘Listing Rules’).

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Interim Report with management
and the Company’s internal and external auditors and recommended

its adoption by the Board. The Audit Committee consists of two
independent non-executive directors, Messrs Alexander Reid Hamilton
{Chairman) and Hansen Loh Chung Hon and one non-executive director,
Mr Willie Chang. The Committee members possess diversified industrial '

and professional experience including that of accounting and finance.

The Interim Accounts, which are prepared in accordance with HkAs 34
‘Interim Financial Reporting’, have been reviewed by the Company’s
independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers in accordance with

the Auditing Standard sas 700 ‘Engagements To Review Interim

Financial Reports’.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the six months
ended 30 June 2005.

In March 2005, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee were modified to incorporate certain provisions
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and a model code for securities transactions was adopted
for those employees that are likely to possess price sensitive information.
In addition, amendment to the Company’s Articles of Association was
approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 12 May
2005 so that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Subsequently, the Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website
www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary financial reports to shareholders,

announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

" Reuters: 0257. HK

American Depositary Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports
Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports from
the Registrars. Others should contact the Company Secretary on 2820 2111

or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for a printed report.

Investor Relations
Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or at

investor.relations@citicpacific.com.

Financial Calendar
Closure of Register: 12 September 2005 to 16 September 2005
Interim Dividend payable: 22 September 2005
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

BEANAZ+ A IEAMA—KREE for the six months ended 30 June ~ unaudited

gl
BiisE As restated
KUEERE T E in HK$ million Note 2005 2004
BEE Turnover 13,637 10,872
REERERR Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 1,970 1,205
G %&: Share of Results of
HEZHER Jointly Controlled Entities 161 301
BE AT Associated Companies 1,142 708
B®EE Finance Charges (124) (177)
BERA Finance income 32 67
MEXEFE Net Finance Charges 4 (92) (110)
BRBL AT Profit before Taxation 3,181 2,104
BIE Taxation 5 (248) (158)
HA g 328 F Profit for the Period 2,933 1,946
BEARREH : Attributable to:
ERBRE Sharehoiders of the Company 2,773 1,728
LPEBRRER Minority interests 160 218
2,933 1,846
3N Dividends
BEPERE Interim Dividend Proposed 8 (658) (657)
BREMNREIETLTRRE Earnings per Share for Profit Attributable
EERA Ga% ) to Shareholders of the Company
during the Period (HK$) 7
B2 Basic 1.26 0.79
BE Diluted 1.26 0.79
BEREEGEET) Dividend per Share (HK$)
& 5 Interim 0.30 0.30
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HEEBEEAERE
Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEH 7
—225F —RBENE
Hisx XAE=+AH +=B=+—8
Unaudited As restated
HEKBEETHE in HK$ miflion Naote 30 June 2005 31 December 2004
FRBEE Non-Current Assets
mE - BERIZE Property, plant and equipment 7,522 7,344
BEME Investment properties 8,678 8,115
BRPME Properties under development 2,111 1,672
BELT Leasehold land 1,575 1,596
HEEHEE Jointly controlled entities 9,240 7,852
/N Associated companies 22,501 21,448
HupiEEE Other financial assets 900 1,121
[GES Goodwill 529 507
BEHBEEE Deferred tax assets 75 . 94
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 140 -
563,271 49,749
RBEE _ Current Assets
HEME Properties held for sale 272 275
BEPDE Properties under development 283 -
e Inventories 2,941 2,778
EWEEE - BUER ke Debtors, accounts receivable,
REfTHRE deposits and prepayments 8 4,580 4,188
RERRITER Cash and bank deposits 2,622 2,417
10,698 9,658
A B=Li= Current Liabilities
BITER  ERERREY Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
HigE secured ' 120 104
| R unsecured 1,762 707
FERERIR - EITERR - B Creditors, accounts payable,
BENKE deposits and accruals 8 5,400 4,742
HERE Provision for taxation 253 249
7,535 5,802
FEREEFSE Net Current Assets 3,163 3,856
BERERRBDER Total Assets Less Current Liabilities . 56,434 53,605
FRE B F Non-Current Liabilities .
REERK Long term borrowings 15,247 13,769
EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities 1,265 1,181
fTTHEERMTA Derlvative financial instruments 28 -
16,540 14,930
BERE Net Assets 39,894 38,675
B EQUITY
[ Share capital 877 877
F& Reserves 36,667 34,367
BEBE Proposed dividend 658 1,754
TRATRREERES Equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company 38,202 36,998
LERRER Minority interests - 1,692 1,677
B Total Equity : 39,894 38,675
33




mEBHeRER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HENAZ+ B EAEA—REZBFEHZ for the six months ended 30 June - unaudited

&5
As restated
KEEEBTHE in HK$ million 2005 2004
GEXBZRERE Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities
HBBESTHEEEZEFSERERN  Profit from Consolidated Activities after Net Finance Charges 1,878 1,095
R Net finance charges 92 110
REEMTBEEERA Income from other financial assets (99) 217)
e Depreciation 358 279
eI Amortisation of leasehold land 22 14
HbB B EERNE 2 REEE Impairment losses on amortisation of other financial assets 22 40
Bt AGABEECZAEE Negative goodwill credited to consolidated profit and loss account - {(128)
ME - BREBEZRESE Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment - 9
HEE  HEREREBT CER)/EE  (Profit) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (10) 15
REMERTFEEZED Change in fair value of investment properties (561) -
HE— RN AR ZEF Profit on disposal of a subsidiary company (360) -
HEXEEHEBZER Loss on disposal of jointly controlled entities 4 -
ST R AFEEIIE Fair value gains on financial instruments 134 -
R EEESEDIEERF Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,480 1,219
TEEHE M Increase in inventories (156) (256)
BUYERTE - BURE 2R Increase in debtors, accounts receivable,

Taft I deposits and prepayments (299) (rot1)
FEfTERIE - ENEXR  BE2R Decrease in creditors, accounts payable,

R RIER D deposits and accruals (197) (251)
INEEEZE Effect of foreign exchange rates 23 12
G/ (BR)FEXEBZHES Cash Generated from / (used in) Consolidated Activities 851 ®7)
BRFS Interest received 23 36
ERFE interest paid (286) (214)
BERFER Income taxes paid (87) (97)

Net Cash from / (used in) Consolidated Activities 501 (342)

Re /(AR GREBZREER
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E5
As restated

EREETAE in HK$ mifion 2005 2004
ARBEXER RERE Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
BAMEBLTE Purchase of 'subsidiary companies (87) 34
BA—HMBARERZEM Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary company (3) (383)
BAYE  BERDE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,188} (1,108)
R EF ﬁ%az&ﬁ Investment in jointly controlled entities 471) {1,253)
REELEZER Investment in associated companies (595) (846)
HEME  BERBEZHSB Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 68 17
HEERMMBEE G Proceeds on disposal of ¢ther financial assets - 2
HEH£FERBEBZHE Proceeds on disposal of jointly controlied entities 5 -
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiary cormpanies 482 -
BT ﬂ@ﬁ'ﬂﬁégz%%ﬁlﬁﬁ‘ /{#EH)  Decrease / (increase) in loans to jointly controlfed entities 195 (60)
HibtigEE 2 Increase in other financial assets (392) (80)
BEFHEQRNZERR DS Decrease in loans to associated companies 219 302
HEBERTZRBBEA Dividend income from associated companies 798 594
RHAREHIERZRBBA Dividend income from jointly controlled entities 5 21
RHMBHBEEZ WA Income from other financial assets 102 214
ARREERZRERER Net Cash used in Investing Activities (862) (2,541)
REBEZRERE Cash Flows from Financing Activities
BB M5 Issues of shares 12 30
HER New borrowings 2,884 2,860
BRBER Repayment of loans (481) (644)
CEREEZZRD Decrease in minority interasts (93) (192)
2R E Dividend paid (1,754) (1,533)
RKEREZESTE Net Cash from Financing Activities 568 521
ReRERRE2BM/ (B )BEHE Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 207 (2,362)
E—A-BzBR:REHEABE: Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 2,381 5,469
IEERRHEE Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes (6) -
ERB=1+AZEERERES Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 June 2,582 3,107
ReERERREEHFERZIN Analysis of the Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents
BERBIER Cash and bank deposits 2,622 3,150
BITEX Bank overdrafts (40) (43)
2,582 3,107
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEANA=Z+BIEAMEA—RZBHEH for the six months ended 30 June - unaudited

£7
As restated
HEEEETHE in HK$ million 2005 2004
—R—RB MMEERHER At 1 January, as Previously Reported as Equity 37,892 36,548
—B—B WHUZEEBEER At 1 January, as Previously Separately Reported
LYRFES as Minority Interest 1,677 2,027
AEYFHE Prior Year Adjustments
BREMERNTFEBEEHH Deferred tax arising from fair value change of
EEZELERE investrment properties {593) (554)
THE B Amortisation of leasehold land (87) (81)
G & QR E] Sharg of associated companies
REMERTEEETM Deferred tax arising from fair value change
EEZBEEMIE of investment properties (204) {204)
FET ey Amortisation of leasehold land (10) 8)
YRR B As Restated, before Opening Adjustments 38,675 37,728
RaEREHEREI0R Opening Adjustment for the Adoption of HKAS 39
SRTHE BRERNEBZHEVAER Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
HARNRRMBARZ#E Impact on the Company and subsidiary companies (114) -
Fi 8t & 0 & Share of associated companies 102 -
e A EEIE S Share of jointly controlled entities (37) , -
—A—B8 - B3l At 1 January, as Restated 38,626 37,728
FEBELSHS Share of Reserves of Associated Companies
HAUBEEZ 2T EEER Fair value loss on other financial assets (32) -
SRIARESMELT P ZKE Gain on cash flow hedge of financial instruments 251 86
G ERHBEREE Share of Reserve of Jointly Controlled Entities
CRTARSREHRZNWE Gain on cash flow hedge of financial instruments 29 -
SRIARSHEBHM 2 WS Gain on Cash Flow Hedge of Financial Instruments 93 -
HiHREEZ AFEERR Fair Value Loss on Other Financial Assets (115) -
SMEBREER Exchange Translation Differences (4) : 11
ARGESERBERIZFUSE Net Gain Not Recognised in the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account 222 97
BARFH Profit for the Period 2,933 1,946
XAERERERE Dividends to Shareholders of the Company (1,754) (1,533)
LEBREERS Minority Interests (145) (685)
ETEBRE Share Options Exercised
B EEE Premium received 12 29
2EITRA Share capital issued - 1
30,894 37,583
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Notes to the Accounts
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed unaudited consolidated interim accounts {‘the
Accounts’) are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard ("HKAS’) 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The accounting policies used in preparation of the Accounts are

consistent with those adopted in the annual accounts for the year

ended 31 December 2004 except that the Group has changed some of its
accounting policies following its adoption of the new / revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS’), including all EKAss and
applicable Interpretations (‘HK(SIC)-INTSs, HK(IFRIC)-INTS and HK-INTS’),

which came into effect on 1 January 2005.

The major changes to accounting policies which have material financial

effect on the Group are summarised as follows:

(i) Goodwill

Subsequert to 30 June 2004, the Group decided to adopt early HKFRs 3
‘Business Combinations’ together with HKAs 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’
and HKAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ in 2004. Since 1 January 2004,
amortisation of positive goodwill has been discontinued and negative
goodwill has been recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
As a result, the profit attributable to shareholders for the six months
ended 30 June 2004 increased by HK$388 million as compared with that

previously disclosed in the 2004 interim accounts.

(ii) Share-Based Payment _

In accordance with HKFRS 2, the fair value of share options at grant date
are amortised over the relevant vesting periods to the profit and loss
account. The Group had no unvested share option outstanding during
the six months ended 30 June 2005 and the policy has been applied from
1 January 2005 onwards.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continuea

(iii) Financial Instruments

Prior to 1 January 2005, derivatives of the Group were not recorded in
the financial statements. Following the adoption of HKAs 32 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and Hkas 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, all derivatives are stated at
fair value. The gain or loss on changes in fair value is recognised generally
in the profit and loss account unless the derivative qualifies for hedge
accounting. Where a derivative qualifies for hedge accounting and is
designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective part and the ineffective

part of any unrealised gain or loss on the instrument is recognised
directly in cash flow hedge reserve and in the profit and loss account
respectively. The cumulative gain or loss associated with the effective part
of the cash flow hedge recorded in cash flow hedge reserve will be
recognised in the profit and loss account in the same period or periods
during which the gain or loss arising from the hedged transaction is

recognised in the profit and loss account.

In prior years, investments held for long term were stated at cost less
impairment losses. Since 1 January 2005, such investments have been
reclassified as Available-for-Sale Investments and carried at fair value or
cost less impairment loss if their fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in
investment revaluation reserve. On the disposal of the investment or when
an investment is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in investment revaluation reserve will be transferred

to the profit and loss account.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

(iv) Pre-Completion Contracts for Sales of Properties Under
Development

In prior years, sales of properties under development was recognised

in the profit and loss account over the course of the development by
reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred to date to the
estimated total construction costs to completion of the development and
the extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking into account due

allowance for contingencies.

Following the adoption of HK-INT 3 ‘Revenue - Pre-Completion Contracts
for the Sale of Development Properties’, revenue from sales of properties
under development is only recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. The Group
considers that the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred when the buildings contracted for sales are completed and the
relevant permits essential for the delivery of the properties have been

issued by the authorities.

The Group has chosen not to apply HK-INT 3 retrospectively to pre-
completion contracts entered into before 1 January 2005 and will continue
to account for those contracts using the method of accounting used prior
to 1 January 2005.

(v) Leases

Following the adoption of HKAS 17 ‘Leases’ and HK-INT 4 Leases -
Determination of the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land
Leases’, leasehold land for own use is reclassified as Leasehold Land and
amortised over the period of the lease on a straight line basis. Prepaid land
lease is included in Properties Under Development and Properties Held
For Sale, of which the amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as
part of the building costs during the development period but charged to
the profit and loss account for completed properties.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

(vi) Investment Properties

In prior years, the change in the fair value of investment properties was
recognised in the property valuation reserve. The deficit of this reserve
was charged to the profit and loss account and any subsequent increases
were credited to the profit and loss account up to the amount previously
charged. Following the adoption of Hkas 40 ‘Investment Property’, gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment properties are
included in the consolidated profit and loss account in the period in which

they arise.

(vii) Deferred Taxation

Prior to 1 January 2005, deferred tax on changes in fair value of
investment properties arising from revaluation was recognised on the
basis that the recovery of the carrying amount would be through sale and

was calculated at the tax rate applicable on eventual sale.

Following the adoption of HK(sIC)-INT 21 ‘Income Taxes - Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets’, the deferred tax arising from
revaluation of the investment properties is recognised on the basis that the

recovery of the carrying amount of the properties would be through use

and calculated at the profits tax rate.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

retrospectively except for HKAS 32, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HK-INT 3

Pursuant to HKAS 8 (which outlines the disclosure requirements when a
change in accounting policy has a material effect on the current and prior
periods presented), the Group has applied the new accounting policies

{Notes 1(iii), (iv) and (vi) above refers) which are applied prospectively in

accordance with the transitional provisions. These effects are summarised

gz MR LGED) © (iv) R(vi)) B4 - B EE as follows:
FanF -
Bk 2 B8 Efects on adopting
EEE BEE
EREGH HEH|RE EEGH ERAFERR
BEETH F21% EHF40% RE3% CE
HK(SIC)- HKAS
KEXFETHE in HK$ million HKAS 17 INT 21 HKAS 40 32 & 38 Total
H_SPMFEZHBHEE Effects on periods prior to 2004
HE T BHEM Increase in amortisation of
leasehold land 81) - - ~ 81)
BB IEE N increase in deferred tax - (554) - - (5584)
GBS DRI EER L Decrease in share of results of
associated companies 8) (204) - ~ (212)
RE B FIH L Decrease in retained profits (89) (758) - - (847)
HoDRMEZEE Effects on 2004
() BE_820Fx4 (a) Six months ended
=Zt+HiEXEA 30 June 2004
HE T aEm Increase in amortisation of
leasehold fand 3) - - - (3)
EEF LM Increase in deferred tax - (19) - - (19)
FEEBERREERY Decrease in share of results of
an associated company M) - - - (1)
4) (19) - - (23)
(b) BE-22NE+=8 (b) Six months ended
=+-BLXER 31 December 2004
BE B EEMN Increase in amortisation of
leasehold land (3) - - - 3)
B AE TR TR 3L Increase in deferred tax - (20) - - (20)
FREEBENRIEEBRD Decrease in share of results of
an associated company (WD) - - - D]
(4) (20) - - (24)
BE-—TEmNE+—A Decrease for the year ended
Z+—AULEERS 31 December 2004 8) (39) - - (47)
R-IOE+=H Decrease in retained profits
ZS+-8RERJBD as at 31 December 2004 97) (797) ~ - (894)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continved

H & 7 28 Effects on adopting

Eseit EEet
&R ERRE ER®Et BEREGR
ERIETH Fo1%  E85405% B EIH £l
HK(SIC)- HKAS
WEETETHE in HKS million HKAS 40 32 8 39 Total
H-SSh&-A-B2¥E Effects on 1 January 2005
SWMIANTEEZESR D Decrease in fair value change of
financial instruments - (20) (20)
B35 2 B EIE N Increase in amortisation of finance charges - (3) (3)
FRIEHE AN Increase in taxation - (14) (14)
FiGB & RaREWE Increase in share of fair value change
AEBEZEEM of investment properties of
associated companies 524 - 524
il E R TFER D Decrease in share of resuits of
associated companies - (24) (24)
REFFE/ (RD) Increase / (decrease) in retained profits 524 61) 483
BemBrEERD Decrease in cash flow hedge reserve - (101) (101)
RESFHEEHEEM Increase in investment revaluation reserve - 24 24
FribB s RRREE Increase in share of investment revaluation
RN reserve of associated companies - 126 126
FRiEE e NRREDE Decrease in share of fair value change
AEEBEEESRH LD of investment properties of
associated companies (524) - (524)
HEZFHERRSNE Decrease in cash flow hedge reserve of
AR jointly controlled entities - (37) (37)
BB ORL) /B (Decrease) / increase in reserves (524) 12 (512)
ERRREEGERERD Decrease in equity attributable to
the shareholders of the Company - (49) 49)
R-B8FF—-HA-—A8 Decrease in equity attributable to
FLRARRESERRD the shareholders of the Company
as at 1 January 2005 -~ (49) (943)
HBE_221%XHA Effects on period ended
=t+tRLEBRzZEE 30 June 2005
T2 & 30 2 51 18 N Increase in amortisation of
leasehold land - - 2)
RIEFTRIE M Increase in deferred tax - - (9)
SRITALTEEZEEMN Increase in fair value change of
financial instruments - 134 134
BEMELFEEEZER Increase in fair value change of investment
FERB IR T TR I 0 properties and related deferred tax 561 - 435
FriEBe s REMELF Increase in share of fair value change of
BEESFREMABEL investment properties and related
FRIRE N deferred tax of associated companies 346 - 285
gy A NI - Decrease in share of results of an
associated company - - 1)
BRRR GRL)/#m (Decrease) / increase in profit for the period 907 134 842
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2 Turnover and Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit from consolidated activities

before net finance charges and share of results of jointly controlled entities

and associated companies by principal activities are as follows:

T
Fr{E & Frik
Z-8BEFAA=+BEAEAR oy EHEE  BELE bR | D8
LEREETHE =] EBEFR B3 BiE  EEAEH  ERSR  EBER
Share of
Results of Share of
Profit from Jointly  Results of
Six months ended 30 June 2005 Consolidated Controlied  Associated Group Segment Segment
in HK$ million Turnover Activities Entites Companies Total  Allocations Profit
BEERBESHT
By principal activity
M=
Aviation - - 12 484 496 - 496
ERRE
Civil Infrastructure 282 181 50 25 256 - 256
Power Generation 99 79 76 (13) 142 - 142
==
Communications 608 9 31 52 92 - 92
W
Property 1,150 547 - 308 855 39 894
Special Steel Manufacturing 6,286 584 (39) - 545 - 545
WERTH .
Marketing & Distribution 5,212 192 15 1 208 (39) 169
Hit
Others - - 16 - 16 - 16
REVELTEERZD
Fair Value Change of Investment Properties - 561 - 285 846 - 846
W RRITHRER
Less: General & Administration Expenses - (183) - - (183) - (183)
13,637 1,970 161 1,142 3,273 - 3,273
MR LIEE
Net Finance Charges (92)
BIE
Taxation (248)
2R A
Profit for the Period 2,933
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2 Turnover and Segment Information continued

FRit 5@ FriE
BE-_ZFENEAA=THL<AEA gE EHER O BELF bR o
LEBESETIE EXH By vl BiE i Eerr EBoER EREN
Share of
Results of Share of
Profit from Jointly  Results of
Six months ended 30 June 2004 Consolidated Controlled  Associated Group Segment Segment
in HK$ mifiion Turnover Activities Entites Companies Total  Allocations Profit
BEEFEBINT
By principal activity
Aviation - - 17 517 534 - 534
EWRE
Civil Infrastructure 260 161 38 29 228 - 228
Power Generation 214 173 167 27 367 - 367
EE%
Communications 736 58 33 32 123 - 123
E S
Property 230 182 - 100 282 36 318
R
Special Steel Manufacturing 3,206 565 - - 565 - 565
HERD B
Marketing & Distribution 6,092 211 11 3 225 36) 189
Hih
Others 134 20 35 - 55 - 55
R —RBITRER
Less: General & Administration Expenses - (165) - - (165) - (165)
10,872 1,205 301 708 2,214 - 2,214
B IFE
Net Finance Charges (110}
IR
Taxation (158)
HA Ay F
Profit for the Period 1,946
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2 Turnover and Segment Information continved

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

ki g
HEAAZTBIEAEAR
Six months ended 30 June
WEEEETHE in HK$ miliion 2005 2004
IR PR 13 53 4T By geographical area
EE Hong Kong 4,747 3,649
F Mainland China 8,231 6,599
B=x Japan 265 226
Hi Others 394 398
13,637 10,872

SEHEERBEM
A SRR HARINR -

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities

The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting and

charging:
BEANA=ZTBEXEA
Six months ended 30 June
KEBEETHE in HK® mition 2005 2004
TA Crediting
HufABEERIBA Dividend income from other financial assets 99 214
BREMELFEEED Change in fair value of investment properties 561 -
HE BB RS F Profit on disposal of a subsidiary company 360 -
s Charging
BEEFERR Cost of inventories sold 9,195 7,659
ME - BBERREBENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 358 279
Hin B EEEBHZRAESR Impairment losses on amortisation of
other financial assets 22 40
BEL N Amortisation of leasehold land 22 14
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BERAZTRHL<EA
. Six months ended 30 June
KEEBETHE in HK$ million 2005 2004

H%EH Finance charges

MEZH Interest expenses 277 187

Hab iz it Other finance charges 18 14

EBRERZRE Amount capitalised 37) (24)

SRMTAZAFEENRSE Fair value gains on financial instruments (134) -
124 177

B BBA Finance income

B WA v Interest income (32) 67)

92 110
5 HIF 5 Taxation

FHEAEHEBBHEAGERSBEMNERR Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the

17.5% ( ZEZME : 17.5%) 318 - BB estimated assessable profit for the period. Overseas taxation is calculated
FHARBHNEFERSEEN B4 £T on the estimated assessable profit for the period at the rates of taxation
REEBRFEWBAZBENE - BIEE  prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Tax provisions are
B ERELER > URBES - B RN reviewed regularly to take into account changes in legislation, practice and

FEMZRE - HEWT ¢ status of negotiations. Details as follows:
HEXRNRAZ+RILERER
Six months ended 30 June
RENGETHE in HK$ miflion 2005 2004
rEHE Current taxation
EERIEHR Hong Kong profits tax 60 61
BINRIR Overseas taxation 57 82
BRHE Deferred taxation
BREWELATEBEED Change in fair value of investment properties : 126 -
FERBEOERER Origination and reversal of other temporary differences 5 15

- 248 158
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6 Dividends
BEXA=+HILREAR
Six months ended 30 June
in HK$ milion 2005 2004

ER-_FETOEXRARE - SREEO.70T
ZEE=F: B¥0707)

2004 Final dividend paid: HK$0.70
(2003: HK$0.70) per share 1,754 1,532

BE_TTRETHERE  SRE%0.30T
(ZFFMF : EH0.307T)

2005 interim dividend proposed: HK$0.30
(2004: HKS0.30) per share 658 657

7 BRER

BERAMNNDEERBIEEMNER -+ LE
CF=ZAET(CEENE  ER+LET
NEETT) FE -

FREF T8RN E BT RMBZ T 58
2,192,285,022/ ( ZFFWE : EBTRG
2,189,998,622/%) 518 - EHEERE A
B#2,195,109,0068% B f ( ZF E W 4
2,191,283,820 & 4%) (BN R BB TRMBEZ
TORE I B b A2 B 2 B AR AT
B A A1 AR O =BT 22,823,984 iR 7
(ZEZME £ 1,285,198 ) 2 T
B)HE -

7 Earnings per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$2,773 million (2004: HK$1,728 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number

of 2,192,285,022 shares in issue during the period (2004: 2,189,998,622
shares in issue). The diluted earnings per share is based on 2,195,109,006
shares (2004: 2,191,283,820 shares) which is the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the period plus the weighted average number of
2,823,984 shares (2004: 1,285,198 shares) deemed to be issued at no
consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised.
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8.1 BUWERIE - BURE

8.1 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

RERBEMNRE Prepayments

ZRBHE ZZEEWNEF
AA=+E +=ZB=+—8
RAEESETHE in HKS mitlion 30 June 2005 31 December 2004

ERE ZERE Trade debtors
—FR Within 1 year 1,628 1,754
—FAt Over 1 year 63 179
1,691 1,933
EWRER ke RBHARE Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 2,889 2,255
4,580 4,188

liofs 3
) BREBRECHERE IHEORFREH

HHE -
i) BEREMIGRREGERETHREZFEBE -

i) YIRS - & RIS T G115 8 N 5 BT
EEBETE -

82 BITRE - BHKRN -

Note:

i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice
date.

i) Each business units has a defined credit policy appropriate to its circumstances.

i)y Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments included derivative financial
assets of HK$6 million.

8.2 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and

REREBIRE Accruals

—2%1nF ZETEEE
NA=+A +ZA=+—8
HNEBYEBETHE in HK$ million 30 June 2005 31 December 2004

EEBFRE Trade creditors
—ER Within 1 year 1,634 1,608
—&E AL Over 1 year 63 24
1,697 1,702
BEER RERERRE Accounts payable, deposits and accruals 3,703 3,040
5,400 4,742

M -

) BTN BRERBNNBEEREYN —TZBET
BITESRER -

9 k&=
ANMARBERERA  HBRBEFEF

FHE o
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Note:

)} Accounts payable, deposits and accruals included derivative financial liabilities of
HK$13 million.

g Comparative figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current

presentation.
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Auditors’ Independent Review Report
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To the Board of Directors of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Introduction
We have been instructed by the Company to review the interim financial

report set out on pages 32 to 48.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of an interim financial report
to be in compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 ‘Interim
Financial Reporting’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the ‘HKICPA’) and the relevant provisions thereof. The
interim financial report is the responsibility of, and has been approved by,

the directors.

It is our responsibility to form an independent conclusion, based on our
review, on. the interim financial report and to report our conclusion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

‘Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with Statement of Auditing
Standards 700 ‘Engagements to Review Interim Financial Reports’ issued
by the HKICPA, except that the scope of our review, as instructed by the
directors, did not extend to the results of an associated company, Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited (‘Cathay Pacific’) for the comparative period
ended 30 June 2004, which were equity accounted for by the directors

on the basis of its published interim financial information.

A review consists principally of making enquiries of management and
applying analytical procedures to the interim financial report and based

thereon, assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have
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been consistently applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review excludes
audit procedures such as tests of controls and verification of assets,
liabilities and transactions. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit and therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit.
Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion on the interim

financial report.

Modified review conclusion arising from limitation of
review scope

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, with the
exception of any modifications to the information relating to Cathay
Pacific for the comparative period ended 30 June 2004 that might have
been determined to be necessary had the above limitation not existed, we
are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the

interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2005.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 August 2005
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Statutory Disclosure
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Dividend and Closure of Register

The Directors have declared an interim dividgnd of HK$0.30 (2004:
HK$0.30) per share for the year ending 31 December 2005 payable on
Thursday, 22 September 2005 to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 16 September 2005.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
12 September 2005 to Friday, 16 September 2005, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify
for the interim dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis
Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,

56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 September 2005.

Share Option Plan

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (‘the Plan’) adopted on
31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for options over the
Company’s shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance. The subscription
price determined by the Board will be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company's share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number of

shares over which options may be granted under the Plan shall not exceed

10% of (i) the issued share capital of the Company from time to time or
(ii) the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of adopting the

Plan, whichever is the lower.

Since adoption of the Plan, the Company have granted two lots of share
options on 28 May 2002 and 1 November 2004 respectively. All options
granted and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 years
from the date of grant and none of such options were cancelled or lapsed
during the six months ended 30 June 2005.
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FHABTREZBRENKE_ZZTAESN A summary of the movements during the six months ended 30 June 2005

AZFTHIEANEARZEBERNT - of the share options granted under the Plan is as follows:
ARRAFZEE A. Directors of the Company
ERIERE
Number of Share Options
TRE ROsE1R  REZE06E6A3081E RO5E6 A EBE T
EEME EHEH BT 182 &7 BfEL A RTTE 0B Z&F BAEEHE
Name of director Date of grant Exercise Balance as at Exercised during Balance as at Percentage of
price 1.1.05 the 6 months ended 30.8.05 issued share
HK$ 30.6.05 capital %
KRR 28.5.02 18.2 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Larry Yung Chi Kin 1.11.04 19.9 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4,000,000 0.182
FINE 28.5.02 18.2 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Peter Lee Chung Hing 1.11.04 19.9 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
2,000,000 0.091
Frig = 28.5.02 18.2 500,000 - 500,000
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 1.11.04 18.9 500,000 - 500,000
1,000,000 0.046
EEE 28.5.02 18.2 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Vernon Francis Moore 1.11.04 19.9 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
2,000,000 0.091
Hhig 4 28502 18.2 300,000 - 300,000
Yao Jinrong 1.11.04 18.9 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
FAH 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - 300,000 0.014
Li Shilin
AN 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - 300,000
Carl Yung Ming Jie 1.11.04 19.9 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
BlER 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - 300,000
Liu Jifu 1.11.04 19.9 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
RUBE 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - 300,000
Leslie Chang Li Hsien 1.11.04 19.9 500,000 : - 500,000
(HF8E1) 800,000 0.036
{Note 1)
lioge Note:
1. RUBAER _ERRFRE -BRELTRFRAZ 1. Mr Leslie Chang was appointed as director of the Company on 1 Aprit 20085.
BEF HM ZEBRBELIR-_FEERFMA—F Thus, this is in respect of the balance as of 1 April 2005.
R
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B. REFS c MBBEEMAET  B.Employees of the Company working under continuous
EREAHZWZARLNFIES contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance), other
than the Directors

fediierdgs
Number of Share Options
BRHBH IEE FRO05%E1 A1R MEBZE05%6F8308 ik osE6A308
BT CEETF 68 ARITE 2T
(Migz2)
Date of grant Exercise price Balance: as at Exercised during Balance as at
HKS$ 1,1.05 the 6 months ended 30.6.05
30.6.05
(Note 2)
28.5.02 18.2 2,770,000 530,000 2,240,000
1.11.04 19.9 4,480,000 110,000 4,370,000
et - Note:
2. ARERGEREZSBRIBTE BB 2 MIEFGUY 2. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
HERBE22.937T » before the dates on which the options were exercised is HK$22.93,
C. HAts C. Others
EAEH A
Nurmber of Share Options
fedieg=p ] ITHEE ROsE1A1R REE05F6A308 RO5E6A308
BT g pca 6188 AT 2 EETF
(B 5x3)
Date of grant Exercise price Balance as at Exercised during Balance as at
HKS$ 1.1.05 the 6 months ended 30.6.05
(Note 3) 30.6.05
28.5.02 18.2 800,000 - 800,000
1.11.04 19.9 200,000 - 200,000
Hiat - Note:
3 ZEBRBIETFEN_EFRAFEFINTEER 3. These are in respect of options granted to a former director, who had resigned
BIRECHERBZIES HESESN-_EFRF in 2005, and former employees under continuous contracts, who had retired
RE e in 2005.
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EEZESER Directors’ Interests in Securities

EZFEREAAZTH  REEHRMER  The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or any associated
Bl ([R5 KRG ) #3521 THRHEZ % corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
FE MR » EERAN T SATATHE % Ordinance (‘sF0’)) as at 30 June 2005 as recorded in the register required
(EEZAEHFRAREBBXVI) B2 to be kept under section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

W

1. AAR BB EE 2 B4 1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation
Bin g B
Number of Shares
B EEBITRA
AARER SEEER e Bils BOE
Personal Corporate Famity Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  simitar interests issued share capital
. %
FEEEGRAT CITIC Pacific Limited
g Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.260
SEIRES Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,728,000 44,600,000 2.113
E S/ Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 0.023
e s Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002
AES: Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146
2R Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002
FEIE - Leslie Chang Li Hsien 30,000 0.001
BEgEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 0.071
ERE André Desmarais 1,488,000 100,242,000 4.640
R Peter Kruyt 2,100 0.0001
(BHEEEEZ (alternate director to
BIES) Mr André Desmarais)
EEREERLT Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited
fEEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013
lofr Notes:
1. BARA51600,000 RIR B BEB—RAHEHESRE 1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the refevant Director duplicate
FUBEBEZREHE REHESHE 2 FEEHEH each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the
FABRER - relevant Director and his family are interested.

2. #i#9%.2100,242,000RBEHF - 12,0008 & 2. Out of 100,242,000 shares, 12,000 shares are held by a corporation controfled by

& *(%7?7 HREERGIZABRE M 70_0 230, OOP the relevant Director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation
gggﬁ;gm ERERUCIRRBRIBBAZE of which the relevant Director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer.
A, T o .
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2. AN Z BB

AL EA AR MR RRERT
FLEH2 ERAHRBMEES) R LK
HERT I — BT LI R -

BEXHIEES  EFFRFRA=ZT
B AAFEEERERELAL A MR E
Bz MERORERTES - waR
A - SRR REES RARHRAEXV
R EZAMERIRE - XREH - W
RAEERGERA LATRER LR RE
EFRMBREAEIRABETFREZETEM
MZ AR XNEHEE  wRAEARN
TEBR A REE E TR RIBT R b 0 Rl E HETT
B4 G WY AR HE ST BT 0 R F A B R B
TRz AR -

FERE

EZZEZRFEANAZTE > REZLHERNE
IR 336RATREZ R RRBET S M
MRE > EEME (RAFEERHL AHEE
ANEBRSN) EALT RO ZERWT

2. Share Options in the Company

The interests of the Directors in the share options (being regarded as
unlisted physically settled equity derivatives) of the Company are stated
in detail in the preceding section of Share Option Plan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2005, none of the Directors of the
Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part XV of
the SFo, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any interests
which are required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies

in the Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 30 June 2005, the interests of the substantial shareholders, other than
the Directors of the Company or their respective associate(s), in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in shares and short
positions required to be kept under section 336 of the srFo were as follows:

QR ZRIOBE
Number of Shares

WEBTRERESR
Percentage to the

Zi5 Name of the Company issued share capital
%
PEHPFREAT CITIC Group 632,066,285 28.826
REFEEER) ERAT(REEED CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited {‘'CITIC HK’) 632,066,285 28.826
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.731
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.183
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FREFEEETIZEMBAR > HiEMAS

ARZEBRA

TEEEZMBLERE

the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:

ARFZBRGHEE
Number of Shares

Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK of the Company

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

BEETRAESE
Percentage to the
issued share capital

%

Affluence Limited
Winton Corp.

Westminster Investment Inc.

Jetway Corp.

Cordia Corporation
Honpville Corporation
Hainsworth Limited
Southpoint Enterprises inc.

Affluence Limited 43,266,000 1.973
Winton Corp. 30,718,000 1.401
Westminster Investment Inc. 101,960,000 4.650
Jetway Corp. 22,500,000 1.026
Cordia Corporation 32,258,064 1.471
Honpville Corperation 310,988,221 14.183
Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000 3.666
Southpoint Enterprises inc. 10,000,000 0.456

Affluence Limited * Winton Corp. "
Westminster Investment Inc. - Jetway
Corp. * Cordia Corporation * Honpville
Corporation * Hainsworth Limited X
Southpoint Enterprises Inc./+ Al B 4 F A &
AR Z &ty - Bt - Honpville Corporation
TRARNFZ EEBR

FTRPEEELAAAPEEEIERER
A7) o H{E % ¥ & Heedon Corporation »

Hainsworth Limited - Affluence Limited &
Barnsley Investments LimitedZ B4
# » Heedon Corporation % Winton Corp. -

Westminster Investment Inc.: Jetway
Corp. * Kotron Company Ltd. &% Honpville
CorporationZ E## K 2 7 ; Kotron
Company Ltd. % Cordia Corporation Z
AR /2 - Barnsley Investments Limited
% Southpoint Enterprises Inc.Z H # # &
NEl e Hit FEPEEEAFRTEARAZE
o BT EEREALRZERER -
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Group is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation and
Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia
Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company
of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Group in
the Company duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company. The
interests of CITIC HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate the

interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary




PEFBEALECEMR  BEfedEE
BERMEREGZHMBAREARALAFZERE
4 o Heedon CorporationfE 424 Bl Z 45 -
B 2 ey A R e 2 B A Al
FANFZ B EL - Barnsley Investments
Limited7E A4 B 2 45 - Bl i n HE &8
FZHBLEERARZERZED - Kotron
Company Ltd EA A F Z#3 » 8 Eild E
BEFAZHBARAEALAZEGER -

B 7

Ay R A B A AR TR - AL F B
AR A Rl RS SRR B [ B B A )
LA i

companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments
Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its
direct subsidiary company as described above and the interests of Kotron
Company Ltd. in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of

its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the period.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies has purchased
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the period.
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EE R B Statutory Disclosure

RELWHRAUEIS. 22 2 HE
RERE

AL RREE L AURAIS 13,220 i L RER 4
AZMEAHERANE - BRAFOEHE
AT RIFEHIESE -

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule13.22

Of The Listing Rules

The Company has included a proforma combined balance sheet of

affiliated companies as required therein under Rule 13.22 of the Listing

Rules. Affiliated companies include associated companies and jointly

controlled entities.

BEBARNZEXEHEEAMRR Proforma combined balance sheet of affiliated companies

SERGER

Group's attributable interest

ZERRFRAZTRLELE

KBS EETiTE in HK$ miflion As at 80 June 2005
BEEE Fixed Assets 10,281
HEE RS Jointly Controlled Entities 521
"E Investments 179
BRBRIEEE Deferred Tax Assets 1
EWEE Intangible Assets 9
BREEE Pension Assets 15
BIERX Deferred Expenses 24
REERER Long Term Receivable 2,119
REBAREYE Net Current Liabilities (258)
EERERIDARE Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 12,891
REER Long Term Borrowings (1,316)
FEEBRRE Deferred Tax Liabilities (689)
BRERER Loans from Shareholders (7,162)
3,724
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Definition of Terms

S
B4ER  EASNLSAR
FERBY  EREERADREHEL
RERM  F. sEnwEe  BELT
REMBEZBERA
BE EMRENSY  TREES
a0 BERRE S RETER
BEX RG4S+ BEE
EBITDA  FREFEFSTY - BIE - 78
R A
RRHER LB BERH . HESE
EEMAR S - BELREET
HzE%
ft =
P SR A 5
SREN EREEARRZ
TR (A
\ BERES
SHERRSE - — s ruaR
B4y 8
B
ERLE = P
e | RARAEBZASESR
SERLRE - FERDBEITHRE
R4 8 8
REEME L - BUE -
10 RS T A
RBER AT

Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leveragae

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and

other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds
Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

A business’s after tax profit that contributes
to unallocated central interest, overhead
and goodwill

Profit attributable to shareholders

it

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

1l

Net debt
Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive the Interim Report in printed form or to rely on its version posted on the
Company’s website. Shareholders may change their choice by writing to the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to rely on the version of the Interim Report posted on the Company’s website and have
difficulty in having access to it, they will, promptly upon request, be sent the Interim Report in printed form free of charge.

Please send the request to the Company’s Share Registrars.
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